
REPLY TO QUERIES RAISED BEFORE PRE-BID MEETING IN 
REFERENCE TO THE RFP FOR APPOINTMENT OF CONSULTANT 
FOR CONDUCTING AN ONLINE ASSESSMENT CENTRE & 
DEVELOPMENT JOURNEY FOR SENIOR OFFICIALS OF BANK 

 
 

RFP REFERENCE NO SBI/STU/RFP/2020-21/1 DATED 3rd April 2020 
Queries raised by prospective bidders through email 

(Similar Queries raised albeit in a slightly different language by different Companies have not been 

eliminated to address all queries. Further suggestions regarding modifications desirable in the RFP 

have not been addressed since RFP terms have already been crystallised) 

S. No. Query Response 

1 

Along with individual reports for the 
participants, the consultant would be 
required to create group report 
containing grade-wise, domain-wise 
and region-wise analytics vis-a-vis 
industry benchmark. Would request the 
Bank to kindly clarify the type of 
analytics report expected. 

We expect standard analytics 
reports wherein the Bank 
employees are to be rated vis-à-
vis respective industry 
benchmarks. 

2 

The Bank at its discretion may carry out 
periodic inspection/quality checks on 
continual basis and where necessary 
may reject the products/solution which 
does not meet the specifications 
provided by the Bank. Kindly clarify the 
frequency of such inspection 

There is no stipulated frequency 
for carrying out such inspection. 
We will do so only if deemed 
necessary. 

3 

The Firm should have relevant 
experience of conducting Online 
Assessment Centre and Development 
Journey in India (of which at least one 
should be in BFSI sector). Would 
request the Bank to consider similar 
projects executed at a global level as 
well 

Global projects in BFSI sector 
may also be taken into 
consideration. 

4 

Due to the lockdown measures 
implemented by the Government of 
India till 3rd May, we request the Bank 
to postpone the submission of the Bid 
to 15 days from the date that the 
lockdown ends 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

5 

Please share SBI’s competency 
framework.  

Present Competency Framework 
of the Bank has seven 
competencies centred around 
various leadership aspects. 



6 

Will the assessment be conducted after 
reviewing/fine-tuning the competency 
matrix for these 1100 participants?  

Yes 

7 
Will the revised competency be used 
only for development? 

It will be used for conducting this 
assessment exercise as well. 

8 

Please confirm the final number of 
candidates. There are references to 
1100 learners in the scope. However, in 
the commercial bid the numbers are 
1200. Please clarify 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

9 

Please elaborate on the need for 2 
case studies and 20 situation 
judgement tests.  

Query unclear 

10 
Is SBI expecting each person go 
through 2 case studies and 20 SJTs? 

Yes 

11 
Is there a specific format of the IDP? If 
Yes, please share.  

No, it has to be designed by the 
selected vendor partner. 

12 
Is SBI expecting personalized learning 
paths for each participant? 

Yes 

13 

Please elaborate the purpose of 
effectiveness matrix, what are the 
parameters? (Page 9) 

The effectiveness matrix will be 
used to evaluate the impact of the 
development journey. The 
parameters for the same will 
range from Self-Survey, Manager-
Survey, Engagement & 
Participation Rate in the learning 
journey. Additionally, usage of 
ROI matrix may also be explored. 

14 

Are we looking at different learning 
design for different levels/grades from 
these 1100 participants? 

Yes 

15 

In SBI's experience, what is the 
recommended periodicity and duration 
for the learners to access the platform 
or courses? (activities per week and 
hours per week) 

There is no recommended 
periodicity/ duration. However, the 
executives are provided platform 
for self-paced learning. 

16 
What will be the indicative cohort size? Will depend upon the results of 

assessment centre exercise. 

17 

All 1100 will be accessing the platform 
for VAC in a fixed timeslot or will be 
spread across a time duration? 

Same window will be made 
available to all 1100 participants. 

18 

How many hours of digital learning is 
expected for a learner?  

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 
exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. 



19 

Does digital learning (as defined in the 
scope) comprise of both self-paced and 
live webinar? 

Yes 

20 
If yes then what is the expected 
composition?  

Refer D below 

21 

Is it left to the service provider to 
recommend (design recommendation) 
the composition? 

Yes 

22 

What kind of infrastructure is available 
in the training academies - Internet, 
systems, speaker, projectors? 

We have fully loaded 
infrastructure in our training 
system 

23 

Will the participants be provided 
desktop/laptops to access course 
curriculum during the training 
workshop? 

Yes 

24 

Will the participants have access to 
internet throughout the assessment + 
development journey?  

Yes 

25 

 Of these 1100 participants, can you 
give us the role/job description of each 
of the different grades? 

Top Executives identified for the 
assessment centre exercise are 
involved in strategisation and 
policy formulation at the Bank. 

26 

Can you give us an approx. regional 
distribution of the participants and the 
region names? 

Pan-India 

27 

Typically, what is the time commitment 
per month (in hours) can we expect 
from each of these learners?  

Flexible; depending upon the 
design of the development 
journey 

28 

Are there blackout periods? Say 
Quarter end, month-end? where we 
cannot conduct training? 

Yes 

29 
What kind of learning resources are 
available for these 1100 folks today? 

Both online as well as offline 

30 

Can you describe the last learning 
intervention that this cohort has gone 
through? 

Learning is a continuous process 
in SBI 

31 

Can you share what are somethings 
that went well and things that could 
have been better? Is there a distance 
learning infrastructure (connected 
classroom) that exists? 

Query unclear 

32 

What kind of virtual collaboration 
channels exist internally? Example MS 
Teams, Zoom etc. 

MS Teams 

33 
What is the expectation from group 
coaching sessions? 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 



34 

Can the report interpretation guide be 
available as a pre-recorded video for 
anytime anywhere consumption?  

exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. 

35 
Can the report debrief in the group 
coaching sessions?  

36 
Will all 1100 require group coaching 
sessions? 

37 
How many group coaching sessions 
per group are expected?  

38 

For the in-person programs, on what 
basis will the 25-30% participants will 
be selected?  

39 What about the remaining participants? 

40 
Where will the F2F sessions will 
happen? 

41 Is having F2F session mandatory?  

42 
Can we leverage bank training centers 
to conduct F2F sessions? 

43 
Intellectual property of the tools to 
remain with partner. Please confirm 

Yes 

44 

What will be the size of the SBI Project 
team that will help in day to day 
execution? 

Need-based 

45 
Will the Project be managed regionally 
or centrally? 

Centrally 

46 

Can we provide our platform's admin 
access to have access to on-demand 
reporting?  

This option can be explored but 
MIS structure will be decided by 
the Bank. 

47 Does SBI currently use an LMS?  Yes 

48 

Do we need to integrate our platform 
with any SBI’s internal learning 
systems? 

No since we propose to use the 
vendor's platform for the 
development journey. 

49 

Are the learners at SBI undergoing any 
microlearning lessons? If yes, what 
format and which platform? 

We have a repository of online 
lessons which are made available 
through our LMS. 

50 

Please share the account details for 
making digital payments for Bid fee and 
EMD. 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

51 
Are there any benefits for MSME? No 
EMD or reduction in Bank Guarantees? 

52 

 Is there a possibility to change the 
payment plan? 15% retention is hard as 
we are a MSMED registered 
organization 

No 



53 

As the lockdown is continued till 3rd 
May can we submit all the documents 
through softcopy 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

54 
 What is the current learning and 
assessment platform deployed in SBI  

Our Leadership Institute is taking 
care of the same. 

55 
 How is the competency of the 
leadership being assessed now?  

56 

What are the grades & designation of 
the employees identified to be a part of 
this initiative? 

Top Executives up to the grade of 
CXO-2 

57 

Could you please share the 
competency framework applicable to 
the leadership groups identified to go 
through this program? 

Same competency framework will 
be applicable across all groups. 

58 

IDPs to be prepared by consultant or 
would they be prepared individually by 
each participant in the format 
prescribed by the Consultant after the 
results of the online assessment center 
is shared with the participants?  

IDPs to be prepared and shared 
with the participants by the 
consultant. 

59 

Could you help us understand more 
specifics about cohort based coaching 
sessions – How many participants 
(approximate numbers) in each cohort? Will be crystallised post-

completion of assessment 
exercise in consultation with the 

shortlisted vendor. 
60 

Could you help us understand more 
specifics about the Face to Face 
workshops - How many sessions? How 
will the participants be selected (25 to 
30%) – AC results or across grades? 

61 

Could you please elaborate the 
definition of ‘sub-contracting’ with 
examples? 

There will be no third-party 
involvement in any of the activities 
with the exception of using of 
psychometric tools and the 
shortlisted vendor will be solely 
responsible for execution & 
completion of the entire project. 

62 

Will all participants have access to 
high-speed internet connection, laptop, 
uninterrupted space to attend the online 
assessment center? 

Yes 

63 

Can two world-class institutions come 
together in partnership to bid for the 
RFP, if yes what will be the modalities 
for submission? 

Not permitted 



64 

Factoring the current Covid challenges 
and extended lockdown, will SBI be 
open for an online submission with Soft 
copies of documents? 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

65 

Is the RFP only applicable to firms 
having permanent establishment in 
India, can an international firm with 
operations in India but no permanent 
establishment in the country be a party 
to this RFP? 

No 

66 

While the financial bid and billing will be 
done in INR, can the payment by SBI 
be remitted in equivalent US$? 

No 

67 
Can you share details on your existing 
competency framework? 

Present Competency Framework 
of the Bank has seven 
competencies centred around 
various leadership aspects. 
Target group will be benchmarked 
against industry levels. 

68 

If the entire framework cannot be 
shared at stage, share 1-2 example for 
our reference 

69 

o Are there any proficiency levels and 
what will be applicable for the target 
audience? 

70 

Do you expect customised or a unified 
assessment experience for different 
levels in the organisation? 

We are open to customisation of 
assessment exercise based on 
the same competencies however 
with a different weightage. 

71 

Do you expect involvement of any 
critical stakeholder (like manager) in 
creation of IDP? 

Can be explored at the material 
time. 

72 

While this intervention is for 1200 
participants, can you provide more 
detailed demographics on levels, 
functions and geography? 

Top Executives up to the grade of 
CXO-2 located pan-India. 

73 

With respect to the learning journey, do 
you envisage an individualised or 
cohort based (or both) experience? 

Learning journey should give both 
individualised as well as cohort-
based experience. 

74 

If cohort based: What will be a 
preferable cohort size for learning post 
IDP? 50-100 (mid-size cohort) 200-500 
(large size cohort) 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 

exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. 

75 

What type of consistency or 
differentiation is important between 
different levels? 

76 

How many days of F2F workshop can 
be accounted for in respect to the 
journey of 25-30% of officials? 



77 
Is there a preferred location for this F2F 
workshop? 

78 
How many hours can participants 
spend on the program (ballpark 
number)? 

79 

From SBI’s perspective, what are some 
metrics of success from the 
intervention? 

Measurable improvement in low-
scoring competencies  

80 

Will the learners be required to receive 
a formal certification as part of 
completion of the learning journey? 

No 

81 

Is there a likely extension on bid 
submission as the lockdown is 
extended till 3rd May? 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 82 

Would it be possible to submit the same 
online? It is a challenge to collect the 
DD and proceed with a hard copy 
submission 

83 

It is a challenge to get a DD of the 
amount. Can the bank guarantee be 
provided 

84 

It is a challenge to procure the stamp 
paper for the POA document. Can this 
be submitted on KPMG letterhead? 

Board Resolution may be 
submitted instead of POA. 

85 

What is the expectation from the report 
interpretation guide with respect to 
industry best practices? 

A fair comparison of each grade 
of officials with the respective 
industry benchmarks. 

86 
What is the current learning 
management system used at SBI? 

Content will be curated by the 
vendor and hosted on the 

vendor's platform 87 

Is the consultant required to develop 
the learning content and leverage SBI’s 
LMS to host the content? OR the 
consultant should provide an IT 
platform for this development journey? 

88 

Is it safe to assume KPMG would be 
responsible for content design, delivery 
and monitoring of the journey? 

Yes 

89 

How many coaching sessions can be 
expected? Approximately how many 
cohorts does the bank envisage to be 
formed? 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 

exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. 

90 

Can you please provide an example of 
cohort bases group? Is it basis level, 
job family or departments? 



91 

Is it safe to assume that there is no face 
to face OR virtual feedback expected 
for the participants only individual and 
group IDP is to be developed? 

Customised IDP to be created for 
each participant. However, if any 
participant desires for one-to-one 
feedback post-assessment, there 
should be a provision for doing 
so. 

92 

We  believe “Ongoing assessment” 
would mean behavioral assessments of 
participants at a scheduled intervals. 

This assessment refers to the 
participant evaluation post each 
learning milestone. 

93 

How many such assessments are 
expected to be conducted per 
participant? Is there any expectation on 
the tools to be used for ongoing 
assessments? 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 

exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. 

94 

How many such workshops are 
envisaged by the bank? Is it safe to 
assume a number of maximum 15 
workshops? 

95 

Since these are meant for 
development, is there any expectation 
on the topics for the workshop? 

96 

How will these 25-30% be finalized? 
Based on seniority OR competency 
gaps? 

97 

What is the batch size for these 
workshops? And any time interval for 
conducting these workshops ? 

98 

Can the submission happen only in an 
online mode due to the current 
lockdown? 

Submission of physical 
documents is required. 

99 

Are you looking for statistical 
measurement of learning intervention’s 
effectiveness OR are you looking to 
measure effectiveness of learning 
intervention on one’s performance 
/KRAs/Goals? If latter, would 
effectiveness result impact any of the 
payment terms? 

While the two aspects are inter-
linked, the payment will be 
released post-effective 
deployment and completion of the 
development journey. 

100 

In approx. % terms, could you suggest, 
at a minimum, how many of the 
learning modules would you like to be 
driven through gamification? 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 
exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. However, 
gamification content should be 
preferably around 25%. 



101 

Is this mandatory that 3 full time 
consultants need to be deployed? 
Since most of the work will be delivered 
using technology? 

Looking at the scale of the 
project, it will be required. 

102 

Do we need to do 1100 assessments at 
the same time or can it be staggered 

Yes, the exercise will be made 
available to all the participants at 
the same time. 

103 

Eg. One case study , once simulation, 
one psychometric and situational 
caselets are a mix of 4 tools ? is this 
correct? 

Yes 

104 

Pls define a simulation – what is 
expected in terms of the IT simulation. 

In the present context, an online 
computer-based exercise 
conducted in a simulated 
environment  

105 
Will bank provide a sign off on the 
deliverables 

Yes. Tools customised for SBI will 
become Bank’s property.  

106 
Bank will need to provide 2 months 
advance notice before extension 

Query unclear 

107 

The bank can have the rights of 
deliverables and solutions, but not the 
IP and platform used by the 
consultants. Please clarify if this is fine 
by the bank. 

Yes 

108 
But we can use subcontractors like 
licence providers who are our partners 
? 

Query unclear 

109 

Will we get the remining 60% only after 
one year post the start of project? If any 
extension happens mid way will it be 
treated as a separate project ? 

The payment will be made as per 
the RFP terms. Any extension will 
not be treated as a separate 
project. 

110 

What are the number of competencies 
in the existing competency framework? 

Present Competency Framework 
of the Bank has seven 
competencies centred around 
various leadership aspects. 

111 

Is the existing competency framework 
same across all levels or are there any 
level/domain specific differences in the 
competency framework? 

At present the competency 
framework is same for all levels 
across the Bank. 

112 

Would it be possible to share the 
number of bands/grades above TEGS 
VI & above? 

In all top executives in four grades 
will be assessed 

113 

Also, request you to share the split in 
terms of number of employees by 
bands/grades 

TEGS-VI 784                                                 
TEGS-VII 200                                                     
TEGSS-I 77                                                
TEGSS-II 17 



114 

Would there be an opportunity to test 
out the online assessment platform in 
your IT infrastructure prior to the 
launch? 

No such in-house platform is 
there in the Bank 

115 

Can the psychometric assessment be 
administered in advance of the 
assessment centre? 

Can be explored if the 
assessment model warrants so. 

116 

Will all the participants be expected to 
join in the same webinar session or 
there is a need to conduct multiple 
sessions to ensure coverage of all 
participants? 

Looking at the scale of the 
project, multiple sessions will be 
required for effectiveness. 

117 

While the cohort-size for the group 
coaching sessions will be determined 
basis the data from assessment center 
reports, is there a minimum and 
maximum number of participants the 
bank has in mind? The batch size constituted should 

ensure effective learning. 

118 

What would be the approximate 
number of attendees for each face to 
face workshop?. 

119 
What is the expected duration of one 
workshop? 

120 

Is there a minimum number of 
workshops that each participant would 
need to attend as a part of his/her 
development journey? 

No such stipulation 

121 

In wake of COVID -19 since the 
lockdown has been extended to 3rd 
May 2020, is there a change in the 
submission procedure/ timeline? 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

122 

As per Negotiable Instruments Act, 
Demand Draft can only be valid for 3 
months. EMD, in form of Demand Draft, 
cannot have validity of 6 months. Given 
the current situation, will NEFT mode 
work to submit EMD? 

123 

Regarding the bidding process, in the 
absence of courier services is there an 
alternate option of submitting the 
technical and financial bids? Due to 
lockdown there is a concern of the 
documents being delivered to you in 
hard copy format.  



124 

Is e- submission possible due to the 
COVID-19 situation and nationwide 
lockdown till May 3rd? Also, there are 
logistical difficulties in getting DDs/Pay 
Order during this time, is it possible to 
do EMD and Bid Fee through account 
transfer? 

125 

Can the consulting organization change 
the number and type of tools to be used 
while ensuring there is a minimum of 
four tools? Or, is the expectation to 
strictly use 1 - simulation exercise, 2 - 
Case Study exercises, 1 - Psychometric 
exercise, and around 20 Situation 
Analysis/in basket case lets? 

Can be done provided the 
effectiveness of exercise is not 
compromised. 

126 

On page 8, section 4, the total number 
of participants is mentioned as 1100, 
and on Page 39 Annexure E, the total 
number of participants is mentioned as 
1200. Which number should we 
consider, 1100 or 1200? 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

127 

Can you provide a brief overview of the 
designation framework and 
demographics (function, location) of 
senior officials (TEGS- VI & 
above) who will go through the 
assessment and development 
journey? 

Top Executives up to the grade of 
CXO-2 located pan-India. 

128 

Please clarify the meaning of 
effectiveness matrix. Have you 
defined any tangible results for the 
development journey? If yes, 
then provide details? 

The effectiveness matrix will be 
used to evaluate the impact of the 
development journey. The 
parameters for the same will 
range from Self-Survey, Manager-
Survey, Engagement & 
Participation Rate in the learning 
journey. Additionally, usage of 
ROI matrix may also be explored. 



129 

Can you confirm the number of officials 
to be exposed to face to 
face workshops? Is this number 400? 
What will be the grade / 
management level of these officials? 
What are the criteria you are 
using to determine who will go for the 
face to face workshops? Also, 
do these officials (selected for face to 
face workshops) need a 
separate development journey 
compared to other officials, or can 
the virtual part of the development 
journey be combined with other 
officials? 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 
exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. However, we 
do not expect the number of 
participants in FRF workshop to 
be around 275. 

130 

Is 1:1 Coaching required, or is the need 
limited to Cohort based 
Coaching? If 1:1 Coaching is needed, 
then how many participants 
will go through it? 

Only group-based coaching 
needed 

131 

Will this be a common webinar for all 
participants or individual / 
grade / domain-wise webinar? 
What is the expectation from the ask 
"detailing the IDP 
components"? Is it to explain their IDP 
report results to the 
participants? Please clarify. 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 
exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. The 
expectation is to explain the IDP 
by way of group webinars. 

132 

Is the expectation from the bank to 
have a single integrated 
technology platform for assessment 
and development? Or, can 
there be different platforms for 
assessment and development? 

They can be different. 

133 

Can the Bank Gurantee be reduced to 
a lower percentage of the 
project cost or to a reasonable capped 
amount instead of 10 % of 
the project cost ? 

No, these are Bank's standard 
guidelines. 



134 

Is the consulting organization, while 
being the single bidder, 
permitted to be partnered or associated 
with other 
individuals/reputed organizations for 
delivery of select services and 
for providing specific propositions to the 
Bank as deemed 
necessary to address the scope of 
work? If partnerships are 
permitted, then should the contracting 
be only with the lead bidder, 
or should there be separate contracts 
with each partner? 

Not permitted 

135 

Many times, due to the nature of 
consulting business, we are 
required to sign Non Disclosure 
Agreements with clients that restrict 
sharing of client-related documents with 
external parties. In such 
cases, we won't be in a position to 
share the documents mentioned. 
We would instead be willing to submit a 
self-attested undertaking 
consisting of all relevant details of the 
engagement. Please confirm 
if this is fine. 

Will be accepted 

136 

Can you explain this requirement? 
What proofs/verification data do 
you expect from the consulting 
organization? 

Query unclear 

137 

The current payment stages are not 
spaced out sufficiently to reflect 
the effort required from the consulting 
organisation over a timeline 
of 9-10 months. Can the payment 
stages be modified as below ? 
1.At Commencement of project 
2.Sharing of IDPs 
3.Finalization of Design of Development 
Journey 
4.Completion of half of Development 
Journey 
5.End of Development Journey 

Payment terms have been 
crystallised and will not be 
changed. 



138 

How are you planning to measure the 
quality of understanding of 
scope? 

The designated committee 
members will evaluate through 

technical presentation, quality & 
effectiveness of instruments/tools 

proposed to be deployed, 
contextualization of tools 

deployed to the Indian context in 
general & BFSI sector in 

particular and quality & design of 
sample content prepared in a 
digital format for the learning 

journey. 

139 

How are you planning to measure 
objectivity in designing & 
delivering of content? 

140 

We have not done an online 
Assessment Centre yet, but are well 
equipped to deliver online 
as well. We have successfully 
completed similar assignments for SBI 
General 
Insurance recently on Competency 
assessment and Development journey 
for the Leadership 
team, very much in line to the scope of 
the tender. Hope that would be 
considered that 
relevant experience for this tender. 
Please confirm 
  

No, this is a pre-requisite as 
already contained in RFP 
Eligibility Criteria 

141 

Keeping the COVID-19 situation in 
view, all our offices are closed and we 
are working from 
home. It will be a challenge to get the 
documents printed and signed 
physically. Is it possible 
to have the documents e-signed and 
submission online? 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

142 
Is there any exemption of EMD for 
MSMEs? 

143 

Is it possible to pay the Bid-fee and 
EMD through NEFT or any other online 
modes? 



144 

We have a turnover between 4-5 crores 
but do carry a strong experience in 
conducting 
Assessment Centre and curating 
Development Journey. Request you to 
please consider our 
participation. 

No, this is a pre-requisite as 
already contained in RFP 
Eligibility Criteria 

145 

In-light of the coronavirus lockdown 
extension – is there any update on date 
extension or alternative digital mode of 
submission? 

Refer to corrigendum dated 20th 
April 2020. 

146 

Does Bank have an existing 
competency framework / dictionary with 
leadership behavioural competencies 
and proficiency levels? 

Present Competency Framework 
of the Bank has seven 
competencies centred around 
various leadership aspects. 

147 

Should we assume number of Senior 
Officials serving as TEGS-VI & above 
are 1100? 

Yes 

148 

Cohort report to include industry 
insights which include best practice for 
cohorts at a broad level. 

149 
Number of reports to be limited to 
Grade, Domain, Location, Age. 

150 

Industry Benchmark - Is it fair to 
assume Industry best practice insights 
can be shared for respective cohorts 
e.g. domain specific, grade wise for 
financial sector. 

151 

Is it fair to assume that digital learning 
journey is needed for all the participants 
of assessment centre (1100) Or can the 
consultant embed shortlisting criteria in 
Assessment Centre and contextualise 
Development Plans accordingly? 

We are open to this suggestion 

152 

Could the Bank specify the 
technological infrastructure in place that 
will facilitate the administration of online 
learning journeys? 

While we have our own LMS, we 
will prefer to use the vendor's 
platform 

153 

Can the consultant partner with bank 
and give recommendations on the 
cohort criteria and size?  Basis the 
cohort report, eventually development 
plans will be presented by consultant, 
hence the cohort size should be aligned 
to overall project. 

We are open to this suggestion 



154 

Is it fair to assume that communication 
support is required upto IDP level and 
not upto Development journey which is 
of 6 months post IDP? 

Will be required throughout the 
project 

155 

Can the Bank clarify if it will support in 
driving project completion, timely 
approvals, review for a timely 
completion of the project? As Project 
for senior leaders’ development will 
need top driven support from Bank as 
well as consultant both. 

Yes all required support will be 
provided 

156 

Is it fair to assume that project duration 
is of 9 months if assume start date June 
2020 (post financial bid opening & 
assumed evaluation time of a month) 
and end date specified is 31st Mar 
2021? 

9 months is the outer limit 

157 

Could the Bank clarify if the same set of 
tools will be administered concurrently 
for 1100 seniors or would Bank be open 
to broad level different assessment & 
development plan for 1100 seniors. 

We are open to this suggestion 

158 

Is it fair to assume that Bank will allow 
sub-contracting only for the purposes of 
the online platform to be used during 
the assessment? 

Sub-contracting will not be 
permitted. 

159 

The serial numbers presented in the 
format are not accurate, the actual 
numbering of the proposal format points 
is 15 and not 18 points.  

There are 15 points only 

160 

Need further clarity on the statement – 
Does this mean the assessment centre 
outcome and consequential 
development plan should be aligned to 
banks growth future strategy and 
expectation from the leadership pipeline 
and should further individual growth & 
learning aspirations 

The intention is to strengthen the 
competencies of the leaders as 
against direct business outcomes. 



161 

As the honourable Prime Minister has 
extended the Lockdown till May 4th 
2020, we request that the last date for 
submission for the bids by Entities be 
extended to May 30th 2020. We will still 
undertake to complete the assignment 
within the stipulated time period and not 
later than March 31st 2021. This is so 
that the requisite documentation can be 
sourced and put together and sent by 
post to the required postal address. 

Refer to the corrigendum for the 
revised last submission date. 

162 

Will we be sent a link for the Webinar 
on the Pre-Bid meeting to be held on 
20th Of April, 2020. 

163 

Can a rehearsal be done for the 
webinar to test connectivity on the 
previous working day at the same time 
ie 17.4.2020 at 4pm IST? 

164 

If the lock-down still persists is it 
possible for the Technical 
Presentations to be made through a 
zoom session by the entities  as the 
restrictions and situation of Public 
transportation will be uncertain for  
quite some time ? 

Decision will be taken at the 
material time 

165 

Is it possible for SBI to share with the 
Bidders the Competency Framework 
along with the Themes and Sub themes 
before the Pre-Bid Webinar so that any 
queries regarding the same can be 
discussed or raised during the Webinar 
so that the Proposal we make is 
specifically targeted to those 
competencies? 

There are 7 competencies in the 
current framework which are likely 
to be revised post-review and the 
assessment centre exercise will 
be based on the revised 
framework.  

166 

Is there any indicative exposure in 
terms of number of hours for which the 
online assessment centre is to run for 
each participant ? 

To be suggested by consultant for 
an effective outcome. 



167 

The Central Government has exempted 
firms registered under MSME Policy 
from Tender fees and EMD for such 
tenders. Is that exemption to be 
extended for this tender also or not ? 
The said notification and Press note is 
enclosed. Point 10 of the Press note 
(page 4 of 17) and Point 10 of the 
notification (page 19 of 25) refers. 

Refer to the corrigendum dated 
20th April 2020. 

168 

What are the locations where 25% of 
the Targetted Audience is to be 
exposed to face to face interventions ? 

Pan-India 

169 

Would SBI provide the existing 
organization data (strategic business 
imperatives, culture/engagement 
surveys, performance scorecards etc.) 
that will be critical to align in order to 
drive broader impact for the Bank? 

Yes that will be provided to the 
shortlisted vendor 

170 

What are the top business outcomes 
and measures that SBI wants to further 
enhance and measure the impact of “to 
ensure a sustainable competitive 
advantage” as stated in the RFP 
document? 

The intention is to strengthen the 
competencies of the leaders as 
against direct business outcomes. 

171 

What would be the geographical spread 
of the 1100 leaders in consideration as 
a part of the RFP? 

Pan-India 

172 

To better align the solution would it be 
possible for SBI to share the 
competency framework with themes 
and sub-themes? 

There are 7 competencies in the 
current framework which are likely 
to be revised post-review and the 
assessment centre exercise will 
be based on the revised 
framework. 

173 

Have the leaders being called out as a 
part of the RFP document experienced 
assessments centers before if so, how 
recently was this done? Could you 
share the development initiatives that 
these leaders have experienced and 
the level of effectiveness of the same? 

Yes last OAC was conducted in 
2018. However, it was not 
followed by a learning journey. 

174 

Does SBI have an existing learning 
platform? If so, are there any 
integration requirements to enable a 
seamless roll out? 

While SBI has its LMS, we will 
prefer to utilise the vendor's 
platform. 



175 

Our understanding being - SBI has the 
Competency framework along with 
Proficiency level and Behavioural 
Indicators – if this is correct, would like 
to clarify the following: 

As under 

176 
(a) When was this activity undertaken & 
how was it accomplished? 

In 2018 in Online Mode 

177 
(b) Kindly specify the reasons – why the 
above requires a relook? 

Changing global financial 
landscape  

178 
What should the online platform 
Designed & Architecture look like? 

To be suggested by consultant for 
an effective outcome. 

179 

Should the links to the participants 
directly go from our software OR Our 
software needs to be integrated with 
your internal platform 

No integration is envisaged 

180 

Kindly specify if there are any other 
requirements on the online platform 
which we have not captured. 

Query unclear 

181 
 As we have understood, the process 
over Webinar would be as follows: 

As under 

182 

Initiate with one - many session on the 
overall understanding of the 
Psychometric tool used 

All tools being deployed in the 
designing of exercise are to be 
explained in group webinar 

183 

Followed by one - one feedback 
session on individual assessments, 
Q&A session individually, detailing & 
helping individual participants on their 
IDP creation. 

To be done through group 
webinar 

184 

Kindly specify if the above 
understanding is correct or there are 
any other requirements? 

Refer above responses 

185 4.      For the development journey:  

Development journey is expected 
to be completed on the vendor's 
platform. 

186 
(a) Should the online courses be hosted 
on the SBI LMS?  

187 (b) Can you share details of the LMS?  

188 
(c) Should the courses need to be 
SCORM compliant?  

189 
(d) Does the LMS support game-based 
learning? 

190 

Can we consider the complete project 
to be administered and run on Virtual 
Platform? Inclusive of all deliverables & 
the entire participant group? 

Face to face workshop are to be 
conducted for around 20-25% 
participants. 



191 

Any specific technical requirements on 
the use of the platform for conducting 
the webinar? 

None as of now. 

192 
Will the Bank support in customisation 
and validation of the content? 

Bank will give a sign-off post 
designing and content creation. 

193 

Kindly share the existing competencies. There are 7 competencies in the 
current framework which are likely 
to be revised post-review and the 
assessment centre exercise will 
be based on the revised 
framework. 

194 

Bid Submission date is 30th April – 
With the lockdown been extended till 
3rd May, is the date likely to be 
revised? 

Refer to the corrigendum dated 
20th April 2020. 

195 

Please share webinar details for the 
pre-bid meeting 
on toral.shah@hranexi.com and please 
confirm number of participants allowed 
from each consultancy?  

196 

One of the point mentions that - “The 
content for the journey would be 
required to be customized for the 
organization.” This is generally 
customized as per the outcome of 
Assessment Center as learning paths 
are mapped based on gaps 
identified.  How many 
competencies/Job Roles are in scope 
so that we can estimate unique learning 
paths to be created as part of this 
project.  

Development journey will be 
designed on the basis of gaps 
identified post-completion of the 
assessment centre exercise and 
sharing of IDPs. Not more than 10 
competencies will form a part of 
the revised competency 
framework. 

197 

Will there be a single design (Tool 
Competency Matrix) for assessment for 
all the participants or are we expecting 
multiple designs? In case of multiple 
designs please elaborate. 

The assessment centre exercise 
will be done by four levels of 
employees ranging from CXO-2 to 
DGM.  We are open to the idea of 
multiple designs for different 
levels. 

198 

What is the difference between the 
simulation exercise and situational 
analysis case-lets.  

In the present context, Simulation 
Exercise is an online computer-
based exercise conducted in a 
simulated environment while 
situational analysis case-lets is 
assessing the situation and 
responding by way of selecting 
one of the options available. 
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199 

Can you please elaborate on what is 
expected to be delivered as part of 
‘measurement of effectiveness’ with an 
example?  

The effectiveness matrix will be 
used to evaluate the impact of the 
development journey. The 
parameters for the same will 
range from Self-Survey, Manager-
Survey, Engagement & 
Participation Rate in the learning 
journey. Additionally, usage of 
ROI matrix may also be explored. 

200 

In the current scenario, we cannot 
make payments through pay order or 
demand draft as SHL offices are 
closed. Please share the alternative 
online payment mode for non-
refundable deposit of INR 10,000/- and 
EMD of INR 100,000/-. 

Refer to the corrigendum 

201 

The document submission date 30th 
April’2020, will be extended under the 
current situation or could we submit the 
document via online mode.  

Refer to the corrigendum for the 
revised last submission date. 

202 

As per Page 39 is “Sharing of IDPs” is 
equivalent to sharing the “Individual 
Feedback report with IDP creation tips 
and template.” 

Complete IDP for each participant 
is to be shared. 

203 

What is the exact number of 
participants for the engagement: as 
mentioned in Page 8 are 1100 
employees and in Page 39 are 1200 
employees? What are the base 
locations of these employees?  

Refer to the corrigendum. 
Employees participating in the 
assessment centre exercise are 
based in locations pan India.  

204 

What are the SBI’s competency 
framework along with themes and sub 
themes on which Assessment and 
Development Journey will be based. 
Also are there different competencies 
across TEGS-VI & above. (we can sign 
an NDA if need be).  

As mentioned in the RFP scope of 
work, the existing competency 
framework is to be reviewed; 
based on which the assessment 
centre exercise will be conducted. 
There is one common framework 
across all levels of the senior 
officials in the Bank. 

205 

If can’t be shared, can we know how 
many competencies are covered in the 
current framework? 

There are 7 competencies in the 
current framework which are likely 
to be revised post-review. 

206 

The Online AC Design needs to cover – 
“At least one simulation exercise, two 
case study exercises, one psychometric 
exercise and around 20 situational 
analysis case lets.” 

As under 



207 

-          Are the simulation exercise and 
situational analysis case-lets - same or 
different?  

They are certainly two different 
tools. 

208 

-          Also, the 20 situational case lets 
means different case lets to be used for 
employees of different functions or 
each participant will be going through 
all the case lets.  

Same set of caselets are to be 
used for all participants across 
functions and levels. 

209 

Is the partner expected to conduct 
Feedback post assessment in any form 
– 1:1 OR Group? 

Customised IDP to be created for 
each participant while discussion 
around IDP will be conducted 
through webinar in groups. 
However, if any participant 
desires one-to-one feedback post-
assessment, there should be a 
provision for doing so. 

210 

For the webinar based IDP creation 
discussion, what involvement is 
expected – covering 1200 employees 
together or training HR team to further 
cascade the information.  

Training HR team is not required. 
The development journey is to be 
designed and handled by vendor 

211 

Why the learning journey is for the 6-7 
months period? Can it be longer or 
shorter?  

The period of development 
journey is tentative.   The same 
will be finalised post-completion of 
assessment centre exercise. 

212 

For the development journey instead of 
micro learning lessons, case lets and 
videos; Could we provide e learning 
and audio books related to 
competencies? 

As long as the tool is effective, it 
will be considered. 

213 

For the Cohort based group coaching 
what’s the batch size and will this be 
conducted over webinar.  

The details of cohort group & size 
will be finalised post- completion 
of assessment exercise on the 
basis of the outcome. 

214 

What will be the agenda for F2F 
workshops for 25-30 % of the 
employees? Also, what will be the 
batch size, duration and location of 
these workshops.  

Agenda is competency 
development. Batch size, duration 
& location will depend on the 
assessment results. 

215 

At what intervals the participant 
feedback and measurement of 
effectiveness needs to shared – 
Monthly, Quarterly or end of 
engagement? 

Monthly will be preferred, 
however, final call will be taken 
during designing of development 
journey. 



216 

Are there extra marks allocated for a 
greater number of engagement letter 
and is there any format for the 
references of the existing clients?  

Experience will count although it 
may not have direct bearing on 
scores. 

217 

As per Page 39 is “End of Development 
Journey” is equivalent to “Delivery of 
F2F Workshop”? 

F2F workshop will form one 
component of development 
journey. 

218 

The scope of work talks about a 
“platform” to provide learning 
journey’s to employees after they have 
gone through the assessments : We 
wanted to ask if you would be keen to 
look at an alternate way to deliver 
learning journey’s for your candidates 
including delivery of curated content 
through individual links, one on one e-
mails etc. In this case, there would be 
no platform and  al knowledge 
exchange would happen through e-
mails while Willis Towers Watson would 
provide MIS, Usage Reports etc 
compiled manually  

The vendor needs to ensure that 
the learning journey and the 
experience is seamless for the 
participant. We presume that the 
individual participant would also 
have a dashboard for real-time 
status of his/her journey.  

219 

If No, would you be ok for your partner 
to outsource / sub-contract this piece of 
work, while the principal responsibility 
remains with the partner. In this case, 
the micro site / Platform  would be 
designed by third party under a 
contractual engagement with Willis 
Towers Watson. However Willis Towers 
Watson would remain accountable to 
SBI for smooth delivery of the platform.  

Sub-contracting will not be 
permitted. 

220 

Our company also represents PSI, 
global leader in talent assessment, as a 
proof of our relevant work experience 
can we submit PSI’s evidence of work? 

The work completed in the 
capacity of your company will only 
be reckoned. 

221 

As a SME we are register as MSME. 
Can the EMD of Rs. 1,00,000 and Bid 
of Rs. 10,000 Fee be waived 
considering we are MSME and the 
current pandemic situation? 

Refer the corrigendum 

222 

In the RFP it is mentioned 
Competencies are identified, how many 
competencies are there? Are the BARS 
developed for these competencies or 
the consultant needs to develop them? 

There are 7 competencies in the 
current framework which are likely 
to be revised post-review. 



223 
Assessment Centre is for how many 
Work levels? 

Four levels 

224 

Is there any specific psychometric tool 
used by your or preferred by or can we 
recommend? 

No preference for any specific tool 

225 

The Bidding process has asked for all 
the documents to be submitted in 
physical form. With the National 
Lockdown being extended till 3rd May. 
Kindly let us know if the last date of 
bidding will be extended or mode of 
submission of the documents will be 
Online/ Soft copy format. 

Refer the corrigendum 

226 

The Bid Fees and EMD amount are to 
be submitted in Pay Order /DD format. 
Since we have our official banking 
account in Gurgaon. Submission of 
physical DD/ Pay Order through courier 
will also be a challenge. Kindly let us 
know if the same can be paid through 
NEFT mode. 

227 

Does SBI have existing classroom 
training material related to 
psychometric test, in basket exercises, 
case studies? 

No 

228 

Does bidder have to provide content? 
Or digitizing content shared by the 
Bank?  

The content is to be curated by 
the vendor 

229 

A specimen of the proposed 
assessment pattern is to be furnished 
as a part of the technical bid. It needs 
to include one simulation exercise, two 
case study exercises, one psychometric 
exercise and around 20 situational 
analysis case lets. Can we assume that 
the content for these specimens need 
not be SBI-specific?  

Must be related to BFSI sector 

230 

We understand that apart from 
individual reports we also need to 
create group report containing grade-
wise, domain-wise and region-wise 
analytics vis-a-vis industry benchmark. 
What are some of the metrics that the 
bank would look at after 6-7 months of 
development journey? Will it include 
NPS from customers?   

The effectiveness matrix will be 
used to evaluate the impact of the 
development journey. The 
parameters for the same will 
range from Self-Survey, Manager-
Survey, Engagement & 
Participation Rate in the learning 
journey. Additionally, usage of 
ROI matrix may also be explored. 



231 

We understand that approximately 25-
30% of officials will also be exposed to 
face to face workshops as part of their 
development journey. Are there any 
specific selection criteria for this group? 

Will be crystallised post-
completion of assessment 
exercise in consultation with the 
shortlisted vendor. 

232 

Does SBI have LMS platform and 
internal app for employees 

While we have an in-house LMS 
platform, we will prefer to host the 
journey on vendor's platform. 

233 

We understand the scope and 
deliverables will be required to be 
designed to Bank’s satisfaction and 
initiated within a month from the date of 
the contract. Does this include review 
cycles and iterations? 

Yes 

234 

Does the current scope indicates 
maintenance and updating the content 
in future? 

No 

235 

Does SBI have any content creation 
guideline (from the technical 
terminology point of view)? 

No 

236 

Can we get the following details about 
the target audience? Or do we need to 
factor a user study in our solution?  
• Age group 
• Work timings 
• Habit of attending trainings 
• Familiarity with online training 
• Comfort level of using apps 
• Clubs they belong to 

While the target audience is tech-
savvy, other details will be shared 
with the shortlisted vendors. 



237 

Given that the assessment of 
executives is not based on 
domain/banking skills, would it be 
acceptable for the consultant 
partner to showcase similar experience 
in other industries? 
  
Would SBI consider similar experience 
of a platform and process deployed for 
internal use, as it demonstrates the 
scalability for more than 4,00,000 
users. 
                - includes domain academy 
for the banking industry  
                - targets different levels 
including leadership development 
                - includes competency 
frameworks, development plans, 
journeys and extensive analytics 

It will be considered as part of 
experience. However, experience 
of having conducted one such 
assignment is mandatory. 

238 
 What is the current learning and 
assessment platform deployed in SBI  

None 

239 
 How is the competency of the 
leadership being assessed now?  

Periodic OAC exercises. 

240 

 Do they have an existing baseline for 
the competencies? What are the 
expected set of competencies (at a very 
high level) for which identified top 
executives have to be assessed 

There are 7 competencies in the 
current framework which are likely 
to be revised post-review and the 
assessment centre exercise will 
be based on the revised 
framework. 

241 

 Has any such competency assessment 
been conducted before? If yes, please 
share high level details  

Yes but the details will be shared 
with the shortlisted vendor. 

242 
 How are IDPs done now? Can a copy 
of IDP template be shared?  

IDP created by vendor partner 
post-OAC as per their own format 

243 
 Will the set of identified top executives 
from select locations or pan India  

Pan-India 

244 
 How is Leadership development being 
done now?  

A mix of internal & external 
trainings/seminars 

245 

 What are the typical learning 
interventions that leaders go through in 
SBI?  

246 
 What percentage of the learning is 
digital?  

Approx. 50% 

247 
 Are the identified top executives 
currently using digital mode of training  

Yes 

248 

 Will the assessment be taken from 
office or in single location in a city or 
from anywhere  

Anywhere 



249 

 Are there any learning effectiveness 
measures being tracked? If yes, what’s 
the response of the target audience to 
different types of learning?  

No structured mechanism in 
place. 

250 

 How will the success of the 
assessment center and following 
interventions be measured?  

The designated committee 
members will evaluate through 
technical presentation, quality & 
effectiveness of instruments/tools 
proposed to be deployed, 
contextualization of tools 
deployed to the Indian context in 
general & BFSI sector in 
particular and quality & design of 
sample content prepared in a 
digital format for the learning 
journey. 

251 

 What is the expectation regarding 
content for the IDP interventions? Will it 
be provided by SBI or will content be 
provided by the consultant?  

252 

 Are there any existing relationships 
with any partners providing 
psychometric assessments, 
competency consulting, coaching, etc?  

None 

253 

 Is there an existing platform on which 
our solution is expected to work? If so, 
what’s the platform?  

No 

254 

 What kind of time commitment will 
leadership have in engaging with the 
solutions?  

Flexible 

255 

 Who will be the sponsor of the 
interventions within the organization 
(experience has shown that without 
strong sponsorship from top leadership 
it’s very difficult to get leaders to 
participate in any development 
program)  

HR Head 

256 

 What is the expectation regarding the 
face-to-face session – will SBI arrange 
it or will the consultant be expected to 
arrange?  

Infrastructure will be provided by 
the Bank 

257 
 Does SBI have any tie ups with any 
institutes for leadership training?  

None 

258 

 Is consultant partner expected to 
conduct instructor led training or SBI 
team can be leveraged to conduct 
instructor led training 

To be conducted by vendor 
partner 

259 

 Any language requirements? We 
assume the language for all 
deliverables to be English, please 
confirm 

Yes 



260 

 What risks and key challenges does 
SBI envisage from adoption of new 
digital assessment ways? 

None 

261 

 Are there any specific OCM areas that 
SBI wants TCS to help drive? Or will we 
work in a co-ownership model for all 
deliverables? 

Query Unclear 

262 

 Can you share history of any recent 
organisation wide change that 
happened at SBI? What lessons 
(critical success factors/ challenges)  
can be learnt from that program? 

Not related to this project 

263 

 What are the preferred / existing 
methods of communication at SBI? Will 
there be support from SBI's team in 
driving communication for the program? 

Yes 

264 

 Who all in SBI are informed about this 
program? What is the level of their 
involvement / commitment towards the 
program currently? 

All stakeholders 

265 

 Is the OCM SPOC / Team identified for 
this program? If yes, have their roles & 
responsibilities been defined for this 
program? 

Yes 

266 
 What is the problem statement that led 
to this requirement?  

None 

267 

As per the clause "A retention money 
amounting to 15% of the total payable 
amount at each stage will be retained 
by the Bank and paid after successful 
completion of the entire project." as  
bidder would be submitting the PBG. 
Request bank to not to retain any 
payment 

No modifications are possible in 
RFP  

268 

Request bank to change LD to a sum 
equivalent to 0.5 % of the total project 
cost for delay of each week or part 
thereof maximum up to 10% of contract 
price 

269 
We request bank to change payment 
for tool cost to be 100% on delivery  

270 
Is bank ok with  cloud based solution 
with all securities in place ? 

Yes 



271 

Need details on SBI's current 
competency framework  

There are 7 competencies in the 
current framework which are likely 
to be revised post-review and the 
assessment centre exercise will 
be based on the revised 
framework.  

272 

Please share more details on TEGS-VI 
as all identified senior officials are in 
this cadre and above  

Top Executives involved in 
strategisation and policy 
formulation. 

 


